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FOREWORD BY THE MEMBER OF THE EXECUTIVE COUNCIL
This year marks exactly 113 years celebration of Mr Moses Mauwane Kotane’s life and the
great legacy that he left behind.As the KwaZulu-Natal (KZN) government and the Department
of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs (EDTEA) it gives us so much
pleasure to celebrate his legacy through the Moses Kotane Institute (MKI). MKI was incepted
in 2009 to keep his legacy alive by providing opportunities for our youth to participate
actively in economic development through education in Science, Technology, Engineering, and
Mathematics (STEM) and appropriate skills development programmes.
As KZN Government we believe that our country’s success and its economic development
will be determined by how well we arm our people, particularly the youth, to participate not
only in the economy of today, but the economy of the future. Central to this is the equipment
of young people with the right skills to tackle the serious shortage of STEM graduates as our
economic growth highly depends on these critical skills.
The high levels of youth unemployment in our country, standing as they do at around six
million people reportedly out of work circulation which translated into 38.2% that features
between 15 and 34 years of age who were not working in the first of quarter of this year,
enjoin us to take radical action to deal with this challenge.
Further,the attainment of a radically-transformed economy as well as our global competitiveness
will remain a pipe dream, if we do not deliberately invest in youth economic empowerment
through skills development. In essence, therefore, the very future of our economy depends
on the work that MKI does for the province.
As such, it gives us pleasure to report that the institute has, since its inception, played an
important role in addressing the challenge of skills shortage, particularly among the rural
youth.
In the 2017 academic year, the MKI provided bursaries to 142 tertiary level students pursuing
undergraduates STEM related studies at universities and Technical Vocational Educational and
Training Schools (TVETS) in KZN and across the country. In 2018 academic year, the institute
funded an overall of 32 post-Graduates students for the first time of which 28 of these
students are doing their Honours Degree/Advanced Diplomas in fields such as; Information
Technology, Town and Regional Planning, Finance, Chemistry, Plant Pathology, Environmental
Monitoring and Modelling, Civil Water Engineering, Software Development, Mining and
Electrical Engineering.The four remaining students are currently enrolled for Masters Degree
in the following fields; Agriculture, Animal Science, Architectural Technology, and Statistics.
Furthermore, in 2017 MKI supported 142 grade 10-12 learners from incubator schools
namely; Dlangezwa High School, Mlokothwa High School, Adams College and Ohlange
High School. Skills development efforts in the country are highly fragmented and have not

Moses Kotane Institute Annual Report 2 17/18

3

reached the scale desired, this intervention therefore is done with a vision of increasing STEM
graduates for economic development and to groom learners at high school level to choose
STEM related subjects.
Under the year review, MKI has been actively co-ordinating the training of 434 youth for the
Digital Terrestrial Television (DTT) programme for a period of one year. This programme
targeted unemployed youth from the following Municipalities; Nkandla, Qhudeni, Maphumulo,
Pomeroy,Tugella Ferry, Mbazwane, Esidini, KwaHlabisa, Pongola, Dr Nkosazana Dlamini Zuma,
Jozini, Umzimkhulu, and Kokstad.We truly believe that this opportunity will benefit our youth
significantly as it will afford them the opportunity to become entrepreneurs and run their
businesses of installation and maintenance of set of boxes as our country is in the process of
migrating over to DTT.
Noting some of the key achievements of MKI from 2018/19 financial year, the institute will
begin its transaction in becoming a PFMA schedule 3C public entity focused on research into
the diverse skills required for sustainable economic growth and in evolving a co-ordination
role in the roll out of education and skills development programmes in the province. Our
appreciation and heart felt gratitude is due to all our stakeholders for their contribution and
commitment in ensuring that we continue with availing skills development opportunities in
order to enhance our economic growth while also ensuring that our youth benefits from our
efforts.
Additionally, our grateful thanks go out to MKI Board of Directors for their constructive
guidance and their effort in ensuring that the institute provides quality and relevant
programmes that address the mismatch between labour market demands and the availability
of critical skills.

________________________
Mr Sihle Zikalala, MPL
MEC: Economic Development Tourism and Environmental Affairs (EDTEA)
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CHAIRPERSON’S MESSAGE
It gives me great pleasure to present the 2017/18 Annual Report in my capacity as the Chairperson
of the Board of the Moses Kotane Institute (MKI). The year under review was a successful one as the
MKI once again achieved a clean audit which is testament to our strong financial management and
governance systems.We were also able to reach out and touch the lives of many young people within
KwaZulu-Natal (KZN).
South Africa and KwaZulu-Natal is still trapped in the grip of persistently low economic growth
rates. Increasing and persistently high poverty levels, unemployment and inequality remain the central
challenge as we strive to improve the quality of life for our citizens, with a specific focus on our youth
and vulnerable groups in society. These central challenges become more complex in the context of
rapid technological change that is driving economic growth and development in the world today and
into the future.
It is common cause that South Africa and KZN suffers from skills shortages particularly in disciplines
related to Science, Technology, Engineering and Mathematics. The outputs of our education and
training system are insufficient to meet the growing needs of the marketplace for adequately skilled,
creative, adaptable and capable people who can both work and create work in the mainstream
economy. In 2017, the National Department of Education school report illustrates that South African
learners perform poorly in Mathematics and Physical sciences subjects. Of the grade 12 learners
who wrote Mathematics and Physical Science in 2017, only 52% and 65% passed respectively. In KZN,
the pass rate for maths moved from 37.9% in 2016 to 41.5% in 2017, whilst the physical sciences
improved from 57.7% in 2016 to 65.1% in 2017. Similarly, at universities and TVETs, our research
suggests similar patterns of low pass and output rates in STEM disciplines.
In attempting to address the above challenges, the MKI has intervened to stimulate a STEM culture
within KZN and to encourage and support learners and students to pursue STEM disciplines. We
had provided financial support to just less than 300 learners and students studying STEM related
subjects at secondary and tertiary level. We distributed science laboratories to poorly performing
high schools as well as held a career exhibition for high school learners to inculcate an interest in
science.
For (more than 700) young people who were out of school and predominantly unemployed, skills
training projects including digital terrestrial, municipal finance management and recognition of prior
learning, funded by our partners, were conducted to assist in gaining employment or self- employment.
Together with our partners in Samsung, Coastal College and Ethekwini Municipality, we supported
the launch of the Samsung Academy in KwaMashu that will train youth in cellphone, refrigeration and
air conditioner related technology and prepare them for employment or self-employment.
Amongst other interventions outlined in this annual report, in the 2017-18 year, we began to focus
more on the Maritime Sector as a strategic sector which is central to Operation Phakisa. Besides
funding tertiary students in Nautical Studies, we launched a seminar series at the Durban University
of Technology (DUT) focusing on economic opportunities with the sector.
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Working with DUT, and to meet the goals of Operation Phakisa, MKI has supported a proposal to
expand and modernize maritime education and training at DUT by co-funding the installation of a
state of the art Maritime Simulator to enhance training on navigation and logistics.
Going forward, the MKI has also started unpacking its new mandate as directed by the KZN Provincial
government. In the context of rapid technological advances and fundamental change in the way
humanity will consume and produce in the future, MKI has a central role to play as a thought leader
to identify economic opportunity based on a good understanding of science and technology and to
prepare our youth for a technology-based future. In the future, MKI intends to be a leading provincial
research hub as we are in a process of establishing research department within the organisation that
will focus on economic and STEM issues in KZN and the entire country.
In conclusion, I wish to thank all members of the Board for their dedication to MKI during the course
of the year, I hereby also commend the management and employees on their sterling performance in
the context of staffing shortages.
Lastly, I also wish to express my sincere gratitude to the KZN Department of Economic Development,
Tourism, Environmental Affairs (EDTEA) led by the Member of Council; Mr Sihle Zikalala for the trust
that he has placed in us as the Board and the entire MKI Management. Your continuous support and
leadership has ensured that we address the lack of STEM skills to service the economic growth and
development needs of the province.

___________________
Dr Sakhile Ngcobo
Chairperson: MKI Board of Directors
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S STATEMENT
The Moses Kotane Institute (MKI) is proud to close the 2017/18 financial year with a number of
success stories. This could have not been achieved without the commitment of MKI staff, the Board
of Directors and the Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs. It is
indeed obvious that the MKI management remains highly committed and resolute to ensure that the
organisation’s short and long-term goals are achieved.
In the financial year under review the MKI achieved over 75% of its service delivery targets, despite
having severe staffing limitations.The bursary scheme supporting tertiary students in STEM, expanded
and a new, more transparent and fair selection process was introduced. Many of the multi-year skills
development projects also achieved progress in the year as well as the completion of two research
projects.The website was revamped and has a range of information about the institute.There was also
significant progress made with the introduction of an electronic leave system, the activation of the
learner management information system and the DPSA aligned employee performance development
and management system.
In terms of service delivery, MKI supported and participated in the Ilembe Education District Career
expo, supported Operation Sukhume Sahke activities, held an induction seminar for its bursars (284
in total); distributed 7 Science labs to schools in the Ilembe District and oversaw the implementation
of several skills development projects. It is noteworthy that the MKI lecture series in partnership
with the Durban University of Technology was also activated in the period. The MKI completed
an internal thought piece article and regular quarterly newsletters amongst other activities. More
detailed information on the above is available in this Annual Report and on our website.
As we look ahead, in the context of increasing unemployment, poverty and growing inequality,
MKI has an important role to play in upskilling the provinces youth as both future employees and
entrepreneurs. I strongly believe that MKI can and will make a difference together with its partners
in government and the private sector.
In conclusion, I extend my gratitude to our shareholder led by the Member of Executive Council
(MEC), Mr Sihle Zikalala for his continuous support during 2017/18 financial year, the MKI Board of
Directors for their unwavering support and the entire MKI staff for their ability to deliver even during
the most difficult times.

________________________
Mr Ranveer Persad
Acting Chief Executive Officer
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1. REVISED MANDAT,VISION, MISSION,VALUES

REVISED
MANDATE
To conduct research into
diverse skills and training, and
to facilitate coordination of
training between institutions
and government.

VISION

Leading the attainment of
radical and inclusive economic growth through STEM
related education and skills
development.

MISSION
Facilitate strategic
collaborations in STEM
related education and skills
development to support
access to economic
opportunities.
VALUES

Ubuntu
People orientated
Egalitarianism
Political rectitude
Responsibility,
accountability and
sustainability
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2. STRATEGIC GOALS

GOAL 1

To establish and maintain
effective corporate
governance.

GOAL 4

To implement occupationally
directed STEM skills development programmes

STRATEGIC
GOALS

GOAL 2

To position MKI as a preferred partner in STEM skills
development.

GOAL 3

Provide financial support
for recognised STEM education interventions to drive a
knowledge based economy

3. ECONOMIC POLICY AND STRATEGY
The overall thrust of South Africa’s economic policy and strategy to address both low growth and the key challenges of
inequality and unemployment, is to pursue an inclusive economic growth agenda.
• National Development Plan (NDP)
• Provincial Growth Development Plan (PDGP)
• Industrial Policy Action Plan (IPAP)
• Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs pillars
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4. LEGISLATIVE AND POLICY MANDATE
The Moses Kotane Institute (MKI) was incorporated as a Non-Profit Company in terms of the
Companies Act, 2008 as amended to pursue activities for public benefit. The main objective of
the company is to support education and training initiatives in Science, Technology, Engineering and
Mathematics (STEM) that better equip members of society and particularly teachers, learners and
students to gainfully participate in a rapidly evolving knowledge and technologically driven economy.
Although MKI is not a scheduled public entity, annually, the MKI enters a funding agreement with
the KwaZulu-Natal Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs
(EDTEA), in terms of which the MKI is required to submit quarterly and annual reports, including
financial management reports in terms of section 7(1) of the Public Finance Management Act and
Treasury Regulations 31.1.3. As its main funder and sole member, the MKI is accountable to the
KwaZulu-Natal Member of Executive Council for EDTEA and thus has an obligation to comply with
the relevant legislation governing its main shareholder. This includes the following legislative and
regulatory frameworks:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)
j)
k)
l)

Companies Act
Public Financial Management Act
Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment Act
Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act
Labour Relations Act
Basic Condition of Employment Act
Public Service Act
Small Business Act
Co-operatives Development Act
Manufacturing Development Act
Schedule 4 of the Constitution, namely, urban and rural development; and
Chapter 10 of the Constitution

The mandate of the institute is informed and derived from various strategies, policies and plans
developed at a national and provincial level. These include amongst others:
a)
b)
c)
d)
e)
f)
g)
h)
i)
j)
k)
l)
g)

National Development Plan
Provincial Growth and Development Strategy and Plan
Human Resource Development Strategy for South Africa
National Skills Development Strategy
National Youth Development Strategy and Plan
National Accord:Youth Development
HRD Strategic Framework for Public Service Vision 2015
Provincial HRD strategy
KZN BB-BEE Strategy
New Growth Path
Industrial Policy Action Plans
Provincial Youth Development Strategy
KZN Integrated Maritime Strategy
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5. ORGANISATIONAL ENVIRONMENT
During the year under review, the Institute was issued a revised mandate emanating from EDTEA’s
public entities’ rationalisation process. Governance was strengthened, and the audit outcome
of governance was positive, with few areas to iron out between the entity and the shareholder.
Financial performance of the organisation was good in terms of expenditure towards training and
research programmes, however experienced challenges as some of the funders did not transfer
funds according to funding agreements, which impacted MKI’s relationship with service providers.
Staff capacity was a major challenge throughout the year and impacted on implementation of the
programmes.The institute operated on the 80% vacancy rate. However, with temporary staff, interns
and consultants, the institute achieved 77% implementation towards the performance plan. The
relationship with stakeholders was generally positive, however there was a strenuous relationship
with service providers due to funders, particularly SETAs transferring funds late, and others not at
all. The Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs transferred R53
million to the entity, which was used towards implementation of the programme.

6. HIGH LEVEL ORGANISATIONAL STRUCTURE
MEC for Economic Development,
Tourism and Environmental Affairs

Board of
Directors

5 Board Committees
1. Audit & Risk, 2. Finance, 3. Human Resources, 4. Education and
Skills Development and 5. Social & Ethics

Chief
Executive
Officer
Programme 1
Corporate
Administration
Programme 2
Skills
Development in
SET

Programme 3
STEM
Academic
Development
& Support
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7. PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE REVIEW
7.1 PROGRAMME 1: CORPORATE ADMINISTRATION
Corporate administration programme provides support to the other programmes
within MKI that are focussed on assisting learners and educators in preparing them for
employment and other economic opportunities in the South African marketplace. The
support offered includes providing strategic direction, integration and co-ordination of
activities, support on finance and supply chain activities, performance-based monitoring
and evaluation, human resource management services, facilities management services,
marketing, business development and communication services. It is a transversal
programme aimed at improving and maintaining the effective and efficient functioning of
the operational activities and ensuring good governance.
7.1.1 Office of the CEO
The Office of the CEO provided overall strategic direction, leadership and management for
MKI. It ensured that there is alignment across the operational programmes, implemented
the strategy, policy and directives of the Board. It also ensured that ensured that the
strategic and annual performance plan targets are achieved. The monetary value brought
in by this office is external funding of R4.2 million in addition to the main appropriation.
7.1.2 Human Resources, administration and information technology
The purpose of this unit is to manage utilisation of human resources effectively and
efficiently in accordance to the organisational strategy. The approved staff complement
is 28 staff members. Out of the 28, the vacancies are at 21 posts. Vacancies: The Institute
has tried to manage and implement programmes where possible, however, there has been
high vacancy rate of 75%, and could not fill in the positions due to the moratorium on
vacant positions. In March 2018, 21% of posts were approved by the executive authority,
and this should provide relief in implementing the 2018/19 programmes.
It should be noted that the Institution understands the reasoning behind not filling vacant
the posts during the year, part of that being a review of the Institute’s mandate and
rationalisation process.
7.1.3 Finance
This unit supports the operations of the Institute through providing financial and supply
chain management services, contract management, entity performance monitoring,
reporting and budgetary support to all programmes. In addition, it assists the entity with
the legal, company secretaryship and risk management.
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7.1.3.1 ACTIVITIES UNDER FINANCE
√ Oversees audit
processes

√ Budgeting
√ Financial control
√ Supply chain
√ Reporting
√ Risk management
√ Compliance
√ Legal & contract
Management

√ Company
secretaryship
√ Governance

During the year, the Institute strengthened its financial controls and spent funds within
budget.The Institute prides itself in having spent 77% of its budget towards small companies
owned by historically disadvantaged individuals, as part of meeting the provincial B-BBEE
strategic outcome. Risks have been tightly managed, and implementation plans to mitigate
risks are closely monitored. Compliance with Companies Act, Public Finance management
Act, Preferential Procurement Policy Framework Act, King 1V Code of Governance and
other relevant laws, regulations and directives have been monitored throughout the year.
This has brought the Institute closer towards compliance with laws and regulations, and to
strengthen governance. A risk based internal audit is part of the annual activity to ensure
that all structures comply and that all parties work towards a clean audit. The Institute
prides itself to have raised R4,2 million from external funding sources, and have spent that
towards skills development programme. In addition, we strive towards achieving a clean
audit. Please see annual financial statements.
7.1.4 Business Development and Communications
This unit provides support to the operations of the institute by securing partnerships
for the delivery of STEM skills development. It also establishes and maintains effective
communication within MKI, shareholder and external stakeholders. In March 2017, we
hosted an induction and graduation event where all students sponsored by the Institute
attended and were motivated in line with STEM careers. We are grateful to our partners
from academic institutions, our sponsor Spring Light Gas, and many other stakeholders
from private sector, all spheres of government, students, parents, media and staff.
On the evening of the 13 March 2018, the Moses Kotane Institute partnered with the
KwaZulu-Natal Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental
Affairs (EDTEA) to host the Umyezane Awards where 14 of MKI students and learners
were applauded and recognised for their academic excellence. The bursary holders were
presented with laptops, certificates and tablets by MEC Sihle Zikalala and the Chairperson
of the Board, Dr Sakhile Ngcobo.
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To celebrate the National Science Week, and the birthday of Mr Moses Kotane whom the institute
was named after, MKI partnered with ilembe Department of Education (DoE) hosted a one day
STEM career Expo that targeted grade 9 -12 learners. The STEM Career expo also served to
expose historically disadvantaged learners to various STEM opportunities that are existing.

Bursary recipients that were enrolled at Durban University of Technology (DUT), with the DUT
Faculty of Applied Dean Professor Suren Singh and the Chairperson of the MKI Board, Dr Sakhile
Ngcobo.

Physical sciences cabinet with chemicals that was
handed over to Thandolwesizwe High School in
Partnership with Spring Light Gas (SLG).
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Body anatomy organs donated by Spring
Light Gas (SLG).

Programme 2: Skills Development
Our plan
Programme 2: Skills Development

Our achievement

We planned
7.2
PROGRAMME 2: SKILLS
Our plan
DEVELOPMENT

Digital Terrestrial
Our achievement
Our achievement

• to implement five skills development
We planned
Our projects.
plan
to implement
have 1000 learners
from
•• to
five skillsbenefitting
development
We planned:
our skills development projects
• toprojects.
implement five skills development projects.
have
1000
learnersbenefitting
benefitting
from
• • totohave
1000
learners
from
our
skills
development
projects
our skills development projects

Our achievement
In total, 712 learners went through
MKI training programmes in 2017/18.

We achieved
our
target offour
five
We achieved
to implement
skillsskills
development projects,
Digitalnamely
Terrestrial
Terrestrial
development Digital
projects.
These Television
projects training
were programme,
Municipal
Finance Management
Training,
Recognition of
Digitalachieved
Terrestrial
Television
training
We
our
target
of
five
skills
Prior Learning Training and Radio Production Training.
434
programme. This
is where
trainedwere
development
projects.
Theseweprojects
people7.2.1
from
different
municipalities
install
Digital
Terrestrial
Television totraining
Digital
Terrestrial

digital terrestrial
programme.
Thistelevisions.
is where we trained 434
This
is
where
we trained 434 people from different municipeople from different municipalities to install
palities to install digital terrestrial televisions.
Digitaltelevisions.
terrestrial training
digital terrestrial
550
500
550
450
500

Digital terrestrial
training
500
500

400
450

434

434
Plan

Achievement

Plan

Achievement

400

Students that were trained for the Digital Terrestrial Television Migration
Project in Mbazwane.

Students that were trained for the Digital Terrestrial Television
Migration Project in Nkandla.

Municipal Finance Management
7.2.2 Municipal Finance Management
We trained 133 municipal officials on Municipal
Municipal Finance Management
We
trained
133 municipal
Municipal
Finance
Management
Act.officials
Officialsonwere
from Finance Management
Act.
Officials were
from
different municipalities across
different
municipalities
across
KwaZulu-Natal.
We
trained
133 municipal
officials
on Municipal
KwaZulu-Natal.
Finance Management Act. Officials were from
Finance
Management
differentMunicipal
municipalities
across
KwaZulu-Natal.
training
140
120
140
100

133

133

133

133

Municipal Finance Management
training

120
80
100
60
80
40
60
20
Students that were trained for the Digital Terrestrial Television
Migration Project in Nquthu.

400

Category 1

20
0

Target

Achievement
Category 1

Target

Achievement

12
12
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7.2.3 Recognition of Prior Learning
training
We trained 123 assessors on Recognition of Prior
Learning. This programme was intended to upgrade
and upskill capacities of the TVET Colleges around
the province. The plan was to train 250 assessors
and 60 moderators; however, this programme was
not
completedofdue
non-cooperation
from the
Recognition
Priorto
Learning
training
colleges.
We trained 123 assessors on Recognition of
Prior Learning. This programme was intended
to upgrade and upskill capacities of the TVET
Colleges around the province. The plan was to
train 250 assessors and 60 moderators;
however, this programme was not completed
due to non-cooperation from the colleges.
Assessors on Recognition of Prior
Learning training
300

We trained 22 learners on Radio Production
programme in partnership with NEMISA. These
learners were also paid stipends to attend the
programme. NEMISA undertook to place these
learners at different radio stations for work integrated learning.
We trained 22 learners on Radio Production
programme in partnership with NEMISA. These
learners were also paid stipends to attend the
Radio Production training
23,5

23

23
22,5

22

22
21,5
Target

250

250

7.2.4 Radio Production training

200
133

150
100
50

Achievement

programme. NEMISA undertook to place these
learners at different radio stations for work
integrated learning.
In total, 712 learners went through MKI training
programmes in 2017/18.

0
Target

Achievement

INSERT PICTURES

Radio Production training
INSERT PICTURES

Radio Production class.
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7.3. PROGRAMME 3: STEM LEARNER AND ACADEMIC SUPPORT
7.3.1 STEM INCUBATOR SCHOOLS
Our plan
We planned:
• to support 150 grade 10-12 learners during the 2017 academic year with finances and resources.

Learners that are fully funded by MKI were recognised for their academic
excellence during the Adam’s college prize giving day.

Monitoring and Evaluation (M&E) visit to Mlokothwa High School

Learners filling in M&E Questionnaires at KwaDlangezwa High School
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Programme 3: STEM Learner and academic support
STEM Incubator Schools

Our achievement
Our
Achievement

Our plan

We supported
supported 142
We
142grade
grade 10-12
10-12 learners
learners during
during
the 2017
2017 academic
academic year.
year.
the

We planned to:
§ Support 150 grade 10-12 learners during
the 2017 academic year

STEM Incubator Schools
155
150

150
142

145
140
135
Mlokothwa High School learners performing during the MKI induction and Bursary
award ceremony.

Top performing students that were recognised their academic excellence
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Target

Achievement

We had 42 learners from Adams College (Grade
We had 42 learners from Adams College
10), 50 from Ohlange High School (25 Grade
(Grade
10),Grade
50 from
Ohlange
High
School (25High
12
and 25
10),
25 from
Mlokothwa
Grade 12
and 25
10),
25 from
School
(Grade
10)Grade
and 25
from
Dlangezwa High
School
(Grade
10).
Mlokothwa High School (Grade 10) and 25
from Dlangezwa High School (Grade 10).
Ten matriculants funded by the Institute were
recognised
for academic
These
Ten matriculants
funded byexcellence.
the Institute
wereincluded Silindile Dlamini who obtained 6 distincrecognised for academic excellence. This
tions and Londiwe Madondo who also obtained
Silindile
who obtained
6
6included
distinctions.
TheDlamini
other eight
learners, Busisiwe
distinctions
and Voyi,
Londiwe
Madondo
whoNosipho
also
Mngadi,
Sibonelo
Sthandiwe
Msomi,
Dimba,
Snothando
Nxumalo,
Ndumiso
obtained
6 distinctions.
The other
eight Masango,
Neliswa
Makhoba
and
Nhlanhla
Gcwensa
learners, Busisiwe Mngadi, Sibonelo Voyi, were
recognised for academic excellence and achievSthandiwe
Msomi,
Nosipho
Dimba,
Snothando
ing
an overall
aggregate
between
70-80%.
Each of
Nxumalo,
Ndumiso
these
learners
wereMasango,
presentedNeliswa
with certificates,
laptops
andand
tablets.
Makhoba
Nhlanhla Gcwensa were
recognised for academic excellence and
achieving an overall aggregate between 7080%. Each of these learners were presented
with certificates, laptops and tablets.

7.2 Skills Development Projects

Unemployed Youth Trained
1200

7.3.2 Moses Kotane
Institute Bursaries
1000
1000

Our
800 plan

713

600

• To offer 140 bursaries to tertiary students who
400
were studying in the fields of STEM (science,
technology, engineering and mathematics)
200
0

Our achievement
Target

Achievement

7.3.3 School Resourcing
Our plan
• To support 10 schools with science related
resources.
Our achievement
We supported 7 schools with science related
resources, which were Physics and Life Sciences labs.

We awarded 142 bursaries to tertiary students
who were studying in the fields of STEM.

7.3.2 Moses Kotane Institute Bursary Programme

7.3.3 School Resourcing

STEM Bursaries
142,5

Science Labs
142

142

10

141,5

140

7

6

140

4
2

139,5
139

10

8

141
140,5

12

Target

Achievement

0

Target

Achievement

7.3.4 Research Projects

Research Projects
2,5
2

2

2

Target

Achievement

1,5
1
0,5
0

MKI bursary holders that recently graduated from the
Durban University of Technology for their National
Diploma in Information Technology.

Science kit that was donated to Kranskop High School
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7.3.3 School Resourcing

Science Labs
12
10

10

8

7

6
7.3.4
Research
4
Our
plan
2

•0 To conduct 2 research projects
Target
Our achievement

development.
Achievement

We conducted 2 research projects. The first project
was the STEM strategy research and the second
project
economic possibilities for MKI.
7.3.4
Researchwas
Projects
Research Projects
2,5
2

2

2

Attendees of first lecture series that focused on
Operation Phakisa.

1,5

7.4.2 KwaDukuza Resource Centre

1
0,5
0

Target

Achievement

7.4 Additional Achievements
7.4.1 Lecture series

MKI provided a financial support of R661 000 to
the KwaDukuza Recourse Centre (KRC) towards
its continued operation and activities in 2017/18
financial year. Through the involvement of MKI, KRC
successfully implemented tutorial programmes in
Mathematics, Natural Sciences, English and computer
literacy development for grade 9 to 12 learners.

In 2018, Quarter 1 MKI and the Durban University of
Technology (DUT), Faculty of Applied Sciences and
the Department of Maritime studies entered into a
formal agreement to host a series of open lectures on
issues that are contributing towards the challenges
that are faced by STEM fields especially the Maritime
Industry. The main purpose of these lecture series is
to provide a learning platform for stakeholders to
discuss and debate issues of relevance to economic

KwaDukuza Resource Centre computer lab

Ms Colleen Jack, Editor for Maritime Review speaking
about the Operation Phakisa during the MKI & DUT
lecture series.
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Date of incorporation
The institute was incorporated on 28 November 2008, however, commenced trading on 1 January 2009.
Nature of activities
The Moses Kotane Institute-NPC is involved in the conceptualization, facilitation and implementation of
programs and interventions aimed at achieving a high level of skills in all areas of STEM (science, technology,
engineering and mathematics).
Function and reporting currency
Function and reporting currency of the Institute is the South African Rand.
Directors
The Directors of the Institute during the period 31 March 2018 and to the date of this report were:
Name					Appointment date		Reappointed
Dr S G Ngcobo (Chairman)		
25 February 2011		
01 January 2018
Prof. M S Maharaj			
25 February 2011		
01 January 2018
Dr. I Z Machi				
25 February 2011		
01 January 2018
Dr. E V Nzama				
25 February 2011		
01 January 2018
Ms. M P Myeni				
01 December 2011		
01 January 2018
Mrs. Khomo, CA (SA)
01 January 2014		
01 January 2018
Mr. B Gutshwa***			
20 September 2012		
01 January 2017
Mr S Naidoo, CA (SA)***		
01 April 2018
***Independent audit committee member

Annual Financial Statements
The company’s Directors were responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these Annual Financial
Statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by
the Companies Act No.71 of 2008 of South Africa. The Annual Financial Statements were prepared by the
office of the Chief Financial Officer.
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Company Secretary
Statucor (Pty) Ltd served as the Company Secretary for the year under review
Business Address

		

14 Lakeside Unit			
Derby Downs Office Park
1 University Road			
Westville, 3634

Postal Address
P.O Box 2357
Westville 					
3630					

Bankers				Auditors
First National Bank			
5 Old Main Road 			
Hillcrest, 3650				
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Auditor-General of South Africa
Block B, 460 Townbush Road
Cascades, Pietermaritzburg, 3201
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The Directors are responsible for the preparation, integrity and fair presentation of
the annual financial statements of Moses Kotane Institute NPC, in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) and in the manner required by the
Companies Act of South Africa. The financial statements presented have been prepared
in accordance with IFRS, and include amounts based on judgements and estimates made
by management.The external auditors are engaged to express an independent opinion on
the Annual Financial Statements.
It is the responsibility of the Directors to ensure that the Moses Kotane-NPC Institute
(“the Institute”) maintains a system of internal control designed to provide reasonable
assurance that the Institute’s assets are safeguarded against material loss or unauthorized
use, and that transactions are properly authorised and recorded. The control system
includes written accounting and control policies and procedures with clearly drawn lines
of accountability and delegation of authority.
All employees are required to maintain the highest ethical and integrity standards in ensuring
that the Institute’s business practices are conducted in a manner which, in all reasonable
circumstances, is above reproach. The concept of reasonable assurance recognises that
the control procedures should not exceed expected benefits. The Institute maintains its
internal control system through management review. Nothing has come to the attention
of the Directors to indicate any breakdown in the functions of these controls during the
period under review, which resulted in any material loss to the Institute.
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies
applicable to a going concern.The Board of Directors have adopted this basis of accounting
after having made enquires of management and given due consideration to information
presented to the Board, including budgets and cash flow projections for the period ahead
and key assumptions and accounting policies relating thereto. Accordingly, the Directors
have no reason to believe that the Institute will not continue as a going concern in the
foreseeable future.
The external auditors were given unrestricted access to all financial records and related
data. The Directors believe that all representations made to the independent auditors
during the audit were valid and appropriate.
External auditors’ responsibility is to review and report on these Annual Financial
Statements. The independent auditors have audited the Annual Financial Statements for
the year ended 31 March 2018.
The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 set on pages 21 -
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79 were reviewed by the Audit and Risk Committee on 07 May 2018 and subsequently
approved by the Board on 15 May 2018.
Directors’ Approval of Unaudited Annual Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 March 2018

The Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, as set out on pages
20 - 78 were approved by the Board on 15 May 2018 and are signed on their behalf.

								
Dr. Sakhile G. Ngcobo			
Mr. Ranveer Persad
Chairman of the Board				
Acting Chief Executive Officer
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The Moses Kotane Institute-NPC (“the Institute”) continues to operate in a manner that
is in line with governance best practices and with regards to accountability, transparency,
fairness and responsibility.
The Board of Directors (“the Board”) is responsible for conducting the affairs of the
Institute with integrity and in accordance with the Companies Act and Kings Code of
Corporate Governance Principles (King IV). Management is responsible and accountable
to the Board for designing, implementing and monitoring the policies and systems
approved by the Board and for integrating them into the day-to-day operational activities.
We are committed to integrity, ethical values and professionalism in all our structural
activities that will ensure that the Institute’s business remains sustainable in the long term.
An essential part of this commitment is our Board’s support for the highest standards of
corporate governance.
Shareholder compact
The Moses Kotane Institute-NPC was established as a Non-Profit company in terms
of the Companies Act, Act No. 71 of 2008 as amended. The Department of Economic
Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs is the Shareholder and has authority
over the Institute in terms of the Public Amendment Act 30 (2007), which has an objective
to introduce government components as a service within the public delivery, through a
focused, ring-fenced, separate entity under the direct control of the Minster or other
executive authority.
Each year, the Moses Kotane Institute-NPC enters into an annual funding agreement with
The KwaZulu-Natal Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental
Affairs (“EDTEA”) and agrees on its performance objectives, measures and indicators in
line with government treasury regulations principles under the Public Finance Management
Act, 1999 (PFMA). The annual targets are annexed to a list of principles agreed between
the Moses Kotane Institute-NPC and its shareholder and regular reports are provided.
The performance of the Institute against the performance objectives is indicated in the
annual funding agreement.
Board of Directors
The Board is the accounting authority of the Institute as outlined in the Memorandum of
Incorporation. It is required to meet at least quarterly. The Board met at least once per
quarter and ensured that quarterly meetings are held. The Board meetings are scheduled
annually in advance. Special meetings are convened as necessary to address specific issues.
The Board directs the Institute’s risk assessment, resource management, strategic planning,
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financial and operational management to ensure that obligations to shareholders and
other stakeholders are understood and met. Major responsibilities of the Board include
the review of business plans, budgets, monitoring of performance, approval of major policy
decisions and the appointment of the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial
Officer. Certain functions are delegated to committees consisting of non-executive
Directors as detailed within this section.
Good corporate governance requires that the composition of the Board be reviewed
on a regular basis. The rotation of Directors at regular intervals is accepted as standard
practice since it ensures that the Board remains dynamic and does not become stagnant
in terms of thinking and abilities. However, it is important that the process is managed in
such a way that the rotation of Directors does not lead to a disruption in the operations
of the business and that the Board is well-balanced in terms of skills, expertise and
demographics (race, gender and people with disabilities).
Delegation of authority
The political authority of the Institute is the MEC for Economic Development, Tourism
and Environmental Affairs in KwaZulu-Natal, Mr. Sihle Zikalala.The Board has the authority
to assist with leadership on the strategic business of the institute, including the authority
to delegate its powers. The Board aims to ensure that the Institute remains sustainable
and viable.
The Board’s responsibilities are facilitated by a well-developed governance structure
through its sub-committees and a comprehensive delegation of authority framework.
Board evaluation and performance
A performance evaluation of the Board and individual Directors is conducted at the end
of the financial year. Any shortcomings are addressed and areas of strength consolidated.
The performance of Board committees is evaluated against their terms of reference.
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Board and committee meeting attendance
Number of meetings held during the year are as follows:
Education
Audit
& Risk
Members

Board

Finance

Committee Committee

& Skills

Human

Social

Development

Resources

&Ethics

Committee

Committee Committee

No of meetings held

3

3

3

3

3

3

Special Meetings

3

2

1

0

0

0

Total Meetings

6

5

4

3

3

3

The table below reflects attendance of the membership of the Board and Senior Management.

Members

Education & Skills

Human

Social &

Audit & Risk

Finance

Development

Resources

Ethics

Committee

Committee

Committee

Board

Committee Committee

Dr SG Ngcobo

5

Prof MS Maharaj

6

1

Dr IZ Machi

6

Dr E V Nzama

3

Ms M P Myeni

6

4

4

Mrs S Khomo, CA (SA)

5

5

4

Mr B Gutshwa***

0

3

Ms T P Ellenson, CFO

6

5

4

3

3

3

Mr R. Persad (Acting CEO)

6

5

3

3

3

3

5

4
2

3

3
3

3

3

3

2

2
3

***Independent audit committee member

Board committees
Board committees assist the Board in carrying out its responsibilities. Committees’
recommendations and reports to the Board ensure transparency and full disclosure of
committee activities. Each committee operates within terms of reference that defines the
composition, role, responsibilities and delegated authority of the committee. The Board,
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from time to time, sets up committees for specific (ad hoc) purposes. Committee meeting
attendance is reflected above.These are the standing committees during the period under
review. In addition to the terms of reference, a Board committee exercises its delegated
authority in accordance with specific policies approved by the Board from time to time.
Audit and Risk Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee comprises of two independent members external to the
Institute, the chief executive officer (“executive Director”) of the Institute and the nonexecutive Directors of the Board of the Institute and one has resigned. The Institute has
recruited the second independent member to replace the member whose term ended.
The committee monitors the internal control systems to protect the Institute’s interests
and assets. This committee also reviews any accounting and auditing concerns raised by
internal and external audit, the Annual Financial Statements and the interim reports.
The Audit and Risk Committee ensures that an effective internal audit function is in place
and that the roles and functions of external audit and internal audit are sufficiently clarified
and coordinated to provide an objective overview of the operational effectiveness of the
Institute’s system of internal control, risk management, governance and reporting. This
includes overseeing the IT risks and fraud risks as they relate to financial reporting and
the internal financial controls and reporting to the board on the effectiveness thereof.
The Committee also has to assess the performance of the internal audit function,
and the adequacy of available internal audit resources. During the year under review,
PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) was the internal auditors. In addition, the Audit and Risk
Committee considers and appropriately deals with any complaints received relating to
the Annual Financial Statements, accounting practices or internal audit, whether from
within or outside of the Institute.
The Audit and Risk Committee considers and makes recommendations on the
appointment and retention of the auditors and ensures that such appointments comply
with legislation, the fees paid and the terms of engagement; pre-approves the nature
and extent of any non-audit services and evaluates their independence, objectivity and
effectiveness. Auditors have unrestricted access to the chairperson of the Audit and
Risk committee and the chairperson of the Board. The committee reviews the accuracy,
reliability and creditability of statutory financial reporting.
It also reviews the Annual Financial Statements of the Institute, as presented by management
prior to Board approval. The Audit and Risk Committee meetings were held during the
review period. The Committee had the following members:
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•
•
•
•

Prof. M. Maharaj (Board member and chairperson)
Mr. B. Gutshwa (Independent, external)
Ms. M.P. Myeni (Board member)
Mrs. S. Khomo (Board member)

Permanent invitees
•
•
•
•

Acting Chief Executive Officer
Chief Financial Officer
Internal Auditors
External Auditors

Compliance with the International Financial Reporting Standard, Companies Act and King
IV Report
The Board is the accounting authority in terms of the Companies Act 71 of 2008 as
amended. The Institute has adhered to the statutory duties and responsibilities imposed
by the Companies Act 71 of 2008 as amended, International Reporting Standard and King
IV. The Institute’s system and processes are regularly reviewed to ensure that compliance
is monitored in this regard. In addition, The Institutes is also guided on best practices
by the King reports on Corporate Governance for South Africa and the Protocol on
Corporate Governance in the Public Sector-2002.
The PFMA in principle regulates financial management and governance. The Institute is
funded mainly by government and therefore borrows from Public Finance Management
Act as good practice.
Integrated risk management
The effective management of risk is central to the achievement of the Institute’s vision. By
understanding and managing risk, we can provide greater certainty and security for our
employees, our customers and stakeholders.
The Institute’s Board, through the Audit and Risk committee, acknowledges its overall
accountability for ensuring an effective results-driven, internal risk management process.
Management committee strives to implement a risk monitoring system that enables
management to respond appropriately to all significant risks that could impact on business
objectives.
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Responsibility for the management of risk resides with line management of the Institute.
Those accountable for the management of risks also ensure that the necessary controls
remain in place and are effective at all times. Control effectiveness focuses on improving
our ability to manage risk effectively, so that we can quickly and confidently act on
opportunities to improve and sustain the quality and continuity of supply, create value
and achieve sustainable growth.
The Institute strives to perform risk management at all levels to ensure that risk is
reported upwards. After consolidation of these integrated risk reports, Management
committee and the Audit and Risk committee review and evaluate the risk profile to
determine the major operational, strategic and business continuity risks.
Ethical business conduct
Good corporate governance is about effective ethical leadership, which requires
leadership that demonstrates ethics in decision making, leads by example and oversees
the management of ethics within the Institute. The Institute’s Board is accountable for
the Institute’s ethics management program and the operational responsibilities lie with
Executive Committee (“EXCO”). The Executive Committee assists the Chief Executive
Officer in setting the framework, rules, standards and boundaries for ethical behaviour,
and provides ethics training and an advisory service to employees, assisting them in dealing
effectively with ethical dilemmas in the workplace.
Internal control
Management is responsible for establishing an effective internal control environment,
which is developed and maintained on an ongoing basis to provide reasonable assurance
to the Board regarding:
•
The integrity and reliability of the Annual Financial Statements
•
The safeguarding of the Moses Kotane-NPC Institute’s assets
•
Economic and efficient use of resources
•
Compliance with applicable legislation and regulations
•
Verification of the accomplishment of established goals and objectives, and
•
Detection and minimisation of fraud, potential liability, loss and material
Misstatement
These controls are contained in the Institute’s policies and procedures, structures and
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approval frameworks, and they provide direction, establish accountability and ensure
adequate segregation of duties. They each contain self-monitoring mechanisms.
The Board ensures that an effective internal control framework is established and
maintained. The internal audit function monitors the operation of the internal control
system and report’s findings and recommendations for improvement to management and
the audit committee.
The audit committee monitors and evaluates the duties and responsibilities of management
and of internal and external auditors to ensure that all major issues reported have
been satisfactorily resolved. Finally, the audit committee reports all important matters
considered necessary to the Board.
Governance and compliance
The Board takes fraud seriously and ensures that there is minimum exposure to fraud
and criminal acts. One of the measures has been to implement the whistle-blowing
policies, procedures and fraud and corruption prevention policy. The Board Committees
addresses these threats. Its work covers crime prevention, detection, response and
investigation. Where serious fraud, corruption and irregularities are suspected, forensic
audit is instituted where necessary to establish the acts to enable management to deal
appropriately with the matter and prevent a recurrence. This is done within the whistle
blowing framework.
Employment equity
The Institute applies employment policies that are considered appropriate to the
business and the market in which it operates. They are designed to attract, motivate
and retain quality staff at all levels. Equal employment opportunities are offered without
discrimination to all employees and specific affirmative processes available to historically
disadvantaged individuals.
Code of ethics
The Institute subscribes to a code of ethics and endeavours to act with honesty,
responsibility and integrity towards its stakeholders.
Corporate citizenship and sustainability
The Institute’s business must be run in an ethical manner, taking into account its impact
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on all stakeholders. In addition, it means that the Institute needs to contribute to the
realisation of the hopes and aspirations of people in KwaZulu-Natal and South Africa.
This includes contributing to a safe working environment, environmental responsibility,
promoting the shared growth initiative for the province and corporate social responsibility
and improving the lives of all in the province of KwaZulu- Natal.
General Review
The business and operations and the results thereof of the Moses Kotane-NPC Institute
(“the Institute”) are clearly reflected in the attached Annual Financial Statements. No
material fact or circumstance has occurred between the accounting date and the date of
this report.
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The Role of the Audit and Risk Committee is to provide oversight responsibilities in
the financial reporting process, the system of internal control, the audit process and
the entities monitoring of compliance with laws and regulations, the code of conduct,
the appointment and evaluation of qualifications and independence of the Institute’s
independent auditors. This includes overseeing the IT risks and fraud risks as they relate
to financial reporting and the internal financial controls and reporting to the Board on
the effectiveness thereof. The Board in turn has to report on effectiveness of the system
of internal controls.
The Audit and Risk Committee:
•

Evaluated the Annual Financial Statements of the Moses Kotane Institute-NPC
for the period ended 31 March 2018. Based on the information provided, the
Audit and Risk Committee considers that the Annual Financial Statements
comply, in all material respects, with the requirements of the Companies Act,
71 of 2008, International Financial Reporting Standard (“IFRS”) and Kings Code
of Corporate Governance Principles (King IV),

•

Reviewed the appropriateness of the accounting policies and procedures of the
accounting policies and practices;

•

Concurred that the adoption of the going concern premises in the preparation
of Annual Financial Statements is appropriate; and

•

Acknowledged and condoned the emphasis of matter.

The Audit and Risk Committee recommended approval of the enclosed Annual Financial
Statements for the period ended 31 March 2018 by the Board.

_______________________
Professor Manoj Maharaj
Chairperson of Audit and Risk Committee
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Report of the auditor-general to the KwaZulu-Natal Department of Economic
Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs and the board of directors on Moses
Kotane Institute Non-Profit Company
Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
1.
I have audited the financial statements of the Moses Kotane Institute Non-Profit
Company (NPC) set out on pages 43 to 78, which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2018, the statement comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, as well as the notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.
2.

In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Moses Kotane Institute NPC as at 31 March 2018, and
its financial performance and cash flow for the year then ended in accordance
with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and the Companies
Act of South Africa, 2008 (Act No. 71 of 2008) (Companies Act)

Basis for opinion
3.

I conducted my audit in accordance with the International Standards on 		
Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of this auditor’s report.

4.

I am independent of the entity in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of ethics for professional accountants
(IESBA code) and the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit in
South Africa. I have fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the IESBA code.

5.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my opinion.

Unaudited disclosure notes
6.

The supplementary schedules set out on pages 79 do not form part of the
financial statements and are presented as additional information. I have not
audited these schedules and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon.
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Responsibilities of the accounting authority for the financial statements
7.

The board of directors, which constitutes the accounting authority, is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the
IFRS and the requirements of the Companies Act and for such internal control as the
accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

8.

In preparing the financial statements, the accounting authority is responsible for assessing
the Moses Kotane Institute NPC’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the accounting authority either intends to liquidate the entity or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor-general’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
9.

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and
to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

10.

A further description of my responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is
included in the annexure to this auditor’s report. Report on the audit of the annual report

11.

The entity is not required to prepare a report on its performance against predetermined
objectives, as it does not fall within the ambit of the Public Finance Management Act of
South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA) and such reporting is also not required in
terms of the entity’s specific legislation.

Report on the audit of compliance with legislation
Introduction and scope
12.

In accordance with the Public Audit Act, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA) and the
general notice issued in terms thereof, I have a responsibility to report material findings
on the compliance of the entity with specific matters in key legislation. I performed
procedures to identify findings but not to gather evidence to express assurance.
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13.

I did not raise material findings on compliance with the specific matters in key 		
legislation set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA.

Other information
14.

The accounting authority is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report which includes the director’s 		
report, the audit committee’s report and company secretary’s certificate as required 		
by the Companies Act. The other information does not include the financial statements 		
and the auditor’s report.

15.

My opinion on the financial statements and compliance with legislation do 		
not cover the other information and I do not express an audit opinion or any 		
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

16.

In connection with my audit, my responsibility is to read the other information and, in 		
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or my knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be 		
materially misstated.

Internal control deficiencies
17.

I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements and
compliance with applicable legislation; however, my objective was not to express any form
of assurance on it.

18.

I did not identify any significant deficiencies in internal control.

Pietermaritzburg
31 July 2018
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Annexure – Auditor-general’s responsibility for the audit
1.

As part of an audit in accordance with the ISAs, I exercise professional 		
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout my audit of the
financial statements and on the entity’s compliance with respect to the selected
subject matters.

Financial statements
2.

In addition to my responsibility for the audit of the financial statements as
described in this auditor’s report, I also:

•
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control

•
		
		
		

obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 			
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control

•
		
		

evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the accounting authority

•
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		
		

conclude on the appropriateness of the accounting authority’s use of the
going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements. I also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Moses Kotane NPC’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, I am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial statements about the material
uncertainty or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion
on the financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information
available to me at the date of this auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause an entity to cease continuing as a going concern
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•
evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
		
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
		
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
		
that achieves fair presentation
		
disclosures in the financial statements about the material uncertainty
		
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion on the
		
financial statements. My conclusions are based on the information
		
available to me at the date of the auditor’s report. However, future
		
events or conditions may cause an entity to cease to continue as a
		going concern.
•
		
		
		

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Communication with those charged with governance
3.

I communicate with the accounting authority regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.

4.

I also confirm to the accounting authority that I have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to have a bearing on my
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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The Directors have the pleasure in presenting their report for the financial period
ended 31 March 2018 in terms of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).
General Review
The business and operations and the results thereof of the Moses Kotane Institute are
reflected in the attached financial statements. No material fact or circumstance has
occurred between the accounting date and the date of this report.
Nature of Business Activities
The Moses Kotane Institute-NPC, which is registered as a Non-Profit company in terms
of the Companies Act, 71 of 2008, whose main business is:
•

•

Provision of STEM skills for economic development and service delivery to
members of society through recognised school intervention programmes,
further and higher education and training career paths to facilitate migration
into areas of economic potential;
Facilitation of access to STEM careers at higher education through graduate
development programmes to enhance participation in the mainstream economy;

•

Enhancement knowledge and skills of educators, leadership and governance
capacity and capabilities for government departments, municipalities and
traditional authorities to enhance service delivery and rapid economic
transformation and development; and

•

Provision of continuous strategic political education underpinned UBUNTU,
good governance, developmental state approach and embedding a
historical perspective of poverty, lack of knowledge, lack of skills and associated
underdevelopment.

With these strategic goals as the framework, the Institute focuses on:
•

Contributing to economic development in the Province

o
		
		
o
		
		

Creation of a pool of advanced talent in the Province to service the
needs of vertical industries driven by STEM capabilities (providing skills
as a vehicle for economic development).
Creation of a pool of appropriately skilled STEM graduates capable of
underpinning service delivery through the public and private sectors in
KZN (providing enhanced levels of service delivery).
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o
		
		

Building a pool of appropriately skilled Mathematics and Science 		
educators to overcome a key blockage in the system that reduces
STEM capabilities in the Province.

Application of the International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS)
The annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018 have been prepared in
accordance to Companies Act and International Financial Reporting Standard.
Review of financial position and results
The results of the Institute’s operations during the year under review, and the state of
its affairs under review are set out in the attached annual financial statements and notes
thereto.
Subsequent events
The entity had entered into bursary contracts for student funding and payments amounting
to R8,818,225 was payed in April 2018.
Going concern
We draw attention to the fact that for the financial year ended 31 March 2018 the
Institute has a surplus of R18 008 735.58 committed (2017 surplus of R6 491 399.71)
and that the Institute’s assets exceeded its liabilities by R29 608 269.66 (2017 by R11 609
120.39).
The Institute will be a going concern in the years ahead and as such, it adopts the going
concern basis in preparing the annual financial statements. This basis presumes that funds
will be available to finance future operations and that the realization of assets and settlement
of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments that will occur is dependent on a
number of factors. The most significant of these is that the Board continues to procure
funding from the KwaZulu-Natal Department of Economic Development, Tourism and
Environmental Affairs.
Nothing has come to the attention of the Directors to indicate that the Institute will not
remain a going concern for the foreseeable future.

42 Moses Kotane Institute Annual Report

2 17/18

MOSES KOTANE INSTITUTE NPC
STATEMENT
FINANCIAL
POSITION NP C
M O SESOFKOTANE
INSTITUTE
FOR THE
YEAR
ENDED
MARCH
2018
S TAT
EMEN
T OF31FINA
NCIA
L P OSITION

F OR T HE Y EAR E NDE D 31 MA RCH 20 1 8

Note

2018
R'000

2017
R'000
Restated

ASSETS
Current assets

01 April 2016
R'000
Restated

26,586

11,994

3,196

23,217

6,054

2,105

3,101

5,772

265

268

168

826

4,715

5,295

5,359

4,569

5,006

5,019

146

289

340

31,301

17,289

8,555

1,693

5,667

3,399

963

5,026

2,934

711

438

407

13
6

132
71

13
45

0

13

38

0

13

38

1,693

5,680

3,437

Net assets

29,833

11,609

5,118

Accumulated Surplus

29,608

11,609

5,118

TOTAL NET ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

31,301

17,289

8,555

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade and Other Receivables
VAT Receivable

2
3
4

Non-current assets

Property, Plant and Equipment
Intangible Assets

5
6

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and Other Payables
Current Provisions
Current portion of Deferred Income
Operating lease liabilities

7
8
9

Non-current liabilities

Deferred Income

9

TOTAL LIABILITIES

18
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Note

2018
R'000

2017
R'000

REVENUE
Revenue from Government Grants
Government Grants and Subsidies

10

Other income

Public Contributions and Donations
Other income and Rentals

11
12

55,264
55,264

59,889
59,889

153

470

0
153

90
380

TOTAL REVENUE

55,417

60,359

GROSS PROFIT

55,417

60,359

(8,158)
(1,743)
(593)
(455)
(2,340)
(5,226)
(19,861)

(10,210)
(2,326)
(564)
(429)
(3,627)
(6,752)
(30,414)

(38,276)

(54,322)

17,041
968
0
968
18,009
0
18,009
0
18,009

6,037
454
0
454
6,491
0
6,491
0
6,491

EXPENSES

Employee Related Costs
Directors' Emoluments
Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Auditors' Remuneration
Administration Expenses
Operating Expenses
Skill Development & STEM expenses

13
14
15
16
17
18
19

TOTAL EXPENSES
OPERATING PROFIT
Finance Income
Finance cost
NET FINANCE INCOME
PROFIT BEFORE TAX
Income Tax
TOTAL SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD NET OF TAX
Other comprehensive income/loss for the year
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

20
30

19
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018

Note

BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2016

Accumulated
Surplus

Total Equity

R '000

R '000

4,173

4,173

945

945

BALANCE AT 1 APRIL 2016 (Restated)

5,118

5,118

Total Comprehensive income

6,517

6,517

(26)

(26)

11,609

11,609

(10)

(10)

18,009

18,009

29,608

29,608

Correction of prior period error

Correction of prior period error
BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2017(Restated)

Correction of period error
Total Comprehensive income
BALANCE AT 31 MARCH 2018

28

28

-
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Note

2018
R '000

2017
R '000
(Restated)

18,009

6,491

11
273
593
(13)
18,873
2,670
(100)
(119)
(65)
(4,055)
17,204

81
31
564
(25)
7,142
(5,507)
658
119
26
2,091
4,529

(41)
(41)
0

(580)
(505)
(75)

(41)

(580)

Cash flows from financing activities

0

0

Net cash flows from financing activities

0

0

17,163
6,054

3,949
2,105

23,217

6,054

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit
Adjustments for –
Loss on sale of tangible assets
Movement in provision
Depreciation and amortisation
Deferred income
Operating surplus before working capital
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in Vat receivable
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income
Increase/(decrease) in operating leases
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Net cash flows from operating activities

21

Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of Assets
Purchase of Other Intangible Assets

5
6

Net cash flows from investing activities.

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

2

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year
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1. Accounting Policies
				
The following are the principle accounting policies used in the preparation of the annual financial
statements;
				
1.1 Basis of Preparation
				
The Annual Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern and historical basis stated in
accordance with the effective International Financial Reporting Standard including any interpretations,
guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board.
New standards and interpretations not yet effective
At the date of authorisation of the financial statements of MKI, for the year ended 31 March 2018, the
following Standards and interpretations applicable to MKI were in issue but not effective:
IFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018*
IFRS15 (2014) Revenue from contract with Customers periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018*
IFRS 16 (2016) Leases period beginning on or after 1 January 2019
IFRIC 22 Foreign currency transactions and Advance Consideration
The impact on the financial statements for MKI cannot be reasonably estimated as at 31 March 2018.
Amendments to IFRS5, IFRS10, IFRS11, IFRS12, IFRS14, IFRS15, IAS27, IAS28, IFRIC 22 and IAS41 are not
applicable to the business of MKI and will therefore have no impact on future financial statements.
The below standards are applicable to MKI.
Standard of IAS
IFRS 1: First -time Adoption of IFRS
IFRS 7: Financial Instruments – Disclosure
IFRS 8: Operating Segments
IAS 1: Presentation of Financial Statements
IAS 7: Statement of Cash Flows
IAS 8: Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimate and Errors
IAS 10: Events After the Reporting Period
IAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment
IAS 17: Leases
IAS 19: Employee Benefit
IAS 20: Accounting for Government Grants and Disclosure of Government Assistance
IAS 21: The effects of changes in Foreign Currency rates
IAS 24: Related party Disclosure
IAS 36: Impairment of Assets
IAS 37: Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
IAS 38: Intangible Assets
IAS 39: Financial Instrument: Recognition and Measurement
SIC-10: Government Assistance
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1.2
Currency
			
The Annual Financial Statements are presented in South African Rands since that is the currency
in which the majority of the entity’s transactions are denominated.
1.3
Going Concern Assumption
			
These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that the entity
will continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months.
			
1.4
Significant Areas of Judgement
			
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form
the basis of making the judgments about carrying values the preparation of financial statements
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about
carrying values.
1.4.1 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
			
Provisions are recognised when all the following conditions are met:
		
• The entity has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event
		
• It is probable that an outflow or economic benefits will be required to settle the
		
obligation; and
		
• A reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
		
Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the
		
present obligation at reporting date.
		
Future events that may affect the amount required to settle the obligation are
		
reflected in the amount of the provision where there is sufficient objective evidence
		
that they will occur.
Contingent liability is recognised when all the following conditions are met.

48 Moses Kotane Institute Annual Report

2 17/18

M O SES KOTANE INSTITUTE NP C
N OT ES TO T HE A NNUA L FINA NCIA L S TAT E ME N T S
F OR T HE Y EAR E NDE D 31 MA RCH 20 1 8

- A possible obligation that arises from past events, whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly in the
control of the entity; or
- A present obligation that arises from past events that is not recognised because: -it is not
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation; or -the amount of the obligation cannot be measured
with sufficient reliability.
Contingent asset is recognised when all the following conditions are met
– possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the entity.
			
1.4.2 Depreciation and Amortization
			
Depreciation and amortization recognized on property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets are determined with reference to the useful lives and residual values of the underlying
items. The useful lives and residual values of assets are based on management’s estimation of
the asset’s condition, expected condition at the end of the period of use, its current use, and
expected future use and the entity’s expectations about the availability of finance to replace the
asset at the end of its useful life. In evaluating the condition and use of the asset informs the
useful life and residual value management considers the impact of technology and minimum
service requirements of the assets.
			
1.4.3 Estimates
			
Estimates are informed by historical experience, information currently available to management,
assumptions, and other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
These estimates are reviewed on a regular basis. Changes in estimates that are not due to
errors are processed in the period of the review and applied prospectively.
			
1.4.4 Impairments of Non-Financial Assets
		
In testing for and determining the value-in-use of non-financial assets, management is required
to rely on the use of estimates about the asset’s ability to continue to generate cash flows
(in the case of cash-generating assets). For non-cash generating assets, estimates are
made regarding the depreciated replacement cost, restoration cost, or service units of the
asset, depending on the nature of the impairment and the availability of information. Refer to
accounting policy 1.9.
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1.5
Revenue Recognition
			
1.5.1 General
			
Revenue comprises the fair value of consideration received or receivable in the ordinary course
of the business. Revenue is recognised when it is probable that economic benefits will flow to
MKI and that these benefits can be reliably measured.
			
1.5.2 Interest Income and expenses
			
Interest refers to revenue that accrued to the Institute directly from interest earned on
investments and is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the time
proportionate basis that considers the effective yield on the investment.
			
1.5.3 Government Grants
			
Revenue received from government grants and funding are recognized as revenue when there is
reasonable assurance the entity will comply with the conditions attached to the grant.
			
1.5.4 Deferred Income
When the inflow of cash and assets are deferred and the arrangement constitutes in effect
a financing transaction, the fair value of the consideration is the present value of all future
receipts determined using the useful life of the assets. The utilised income is recorded as 		
revenue in the income statement.
1.6
Employee Benefits
			
1.6.1 Short-term Employee Benefits
			
Short term employee benefits encompass all those benefits that become payable in the short
term, i.e. within a financial year or within 12 months after the financial year. Therefore, short
term employee benefits include remuneration, compensated absences and bonuses.
			
Short term employee benefits are recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income as
services are rendered, except for non-accumulating benefits, which are recognized when the
specific event occurs. These short-term employee benefits are measured at their undiscounted
costs in the period the employee renders the related service or the specific event occurs.
The Institute treats its leave pay as an accrual.
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The costs of all short-term employee benefits such as leave pay, are recognized during the
period in which the employee renders the related service. The liability for leave pay is based
on the total accrued leave days at year end and is shown as an accrual in the Statement of
Financial Position. The Institute recognizes the expected cost of performance bonuses only
when the Institute has a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payment and a
reliable estimate can be made.
			
1.6.2 Defined Contribution Plan
			
The institute contributes to the Momentum Pension Fund for all full-time staff eligible and
whose membership is also compulsory. The fund is a defined contribution plan. The Institute
contributes 7.5% of the pensionable remuneration. The employees also contribute 7.5% of their
pensionable remuneration. The pension fund obligations are paid when due and are terminated
when the employee’s employment with the Institute is terminated.
			
1.7
Property, Plant and Equipment
			
Initial Recognition and measurement
			
Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets that are held for use in the
supply of services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be
used during more than one reporting period. Property plant and equipment consist of land and
buildings, computer equipment, furniture and fittings office equipment, and motor vehicles.
			
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset when:
•
it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the
		
asset will flow to the entity; and
•
The cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
			
Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at cost.
			
Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant
and equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If
a replacement cost is recognized in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and
equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognized.
			
Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary
asset or assets, or a combination of assets and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially
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measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item’s fair value was not determinable, it’s deemed cost
is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up.
			
Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized as assets on acquisition date and are initially
recorded at cost where acquired through exchange transactions. However, when items of property, plant
and equipment are acquired through non-exchange transactions, those items are initially measured at
their fair values as at the date of acquisition.
			
§When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. These major
components are depreciated separately over their useful lives.
Subsequent measurement
			
Items of property, plant and equipment are accounted for at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses. The Institute depreciates its property, plant and equipment over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, taking into account the residual values of the assets at the end of their
useful lives, which is determined when the assets are available for use. The useful lives and residual values
of the assets are based on industry knowledge.
			
Subsequent costs are capitalized to the extent that future economic benefits associated with usage will
flow to the Institute.
Depreciation
			
The depreciation charge for each period is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income unless
it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.
			
Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight-line basis over the expected useful lives to
their estimated residual value, on the following bases:
Building

40 years

Computer equipment

3 - 5 years

Furniture and fittings

10 years

Office equipment

5 – 7 years

Motor Vehicle

5 – 7 years
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Impairments
				
The entity tests for impairment where there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. An assessment
of whether there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date. Where the
carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is greater than the estimated recoverable
amount (or recoverable service amount), it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount (or
recoverable service amount) and an impairment loss is charged to the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.
				
Where items of property, plant and equipment have been impaired, the carrying value is adjusted by the
impairment loss, which is recognized as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income in the
period that the impairment is identified.
				
An impairment is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment been recognized. A reversal of the
impairment is recognized in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
				
The carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal. The gain or loss
arising from the derecognition is included in profit or loss when the item is derecognized.The gain or loss
arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item.
		
1.8
Intangible Assets
				
Initial Recognition and measurement			
					
An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. Intangibles are nontangible non-current assets that are held for use for administrative purposes and are expected to be used
during more than one period and consist of computer software. The entity recognizes an intangible asset
in its Statement of Financial Position only when it is probable that the expected future economic benefits
or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost or fair value of
the asset can be measured reliably.
					
An intangible asset is recognized when:		
• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset
will flow to the entity; and
• The cost of the asset can be measured reliably.
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Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost.		
					
Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognized as an 		
expense when it is incurred.
					
An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an
internal project) is recognized when:
•
•
•
•
•

It is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale.
There is an intention to complete and use or sell it.
There is an ability to use or sell it.		
t will generate probable future economic benefits.
There are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use
or sell the asset.
• The expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably.
					
Subsequent measurement		
					
Intangible assets are accounted for at historical cost less accumulated amortization and
impairment losses.
					
The cost of an intangible asset is amortized over the useful life where that useful life is finite.
The amortization expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognized in the Statement of 		
Comprehensive Income in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible asset. The
useful lives of the assets are based on industry knowledge.
					
An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, t
here• is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash
inflows. Amortization is not provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment
annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. For all other intangible
assets amortization is provided on a straight-line basis over their useful life.
					
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed
every period-end.
					
Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an
indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result, the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying
amount is amortized over its useful life. An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income to the extent that the carrying amount of assets exceeds their recoverable amount.
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The amortisation charge for each period is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income unless
it is included in the carrying amount of another asset.
					
Amortisation and impairment		
					
Amortisation is charged to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using
the straight-line method. Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight-line
basis, to their residual values as follows:

Computer software

3 years

The amortisation period, the amortisation method and residual value for intangible assets with finite
useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and any changes are recognised as a change in accounting
estimate in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
Impairments		
				
The entity tests intangible assets with finite useful lives for impairment where there is an indication that
an asset may be impaired. An assessment of whether there is an indication of possible impairment is
performed at each reporting date. Where the carrying amount of an item of an intangible asset is greater
than the estimated recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount), it is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount (or recoverable service amount) andV an impairment loss is charged to the
Statement of Comprehensive Income.
				
Derecognition
		
Intangible assets are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic
benefits or service potential expected from the asset.The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an intangible asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying value
and is recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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1.9
Impairment on Assets
			
1.9.1 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than goodwill
At the end of each reporting period, MKI reviews the carrying amount of its tangible and intangible assets
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of individual assets,
MKI estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to
individual cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified. Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired. Recoverable amount is the
higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows
have not been adjusted. If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to
be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced
to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the
relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
decrease.
When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
1.10

Leasing

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership. When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity
assesses the classification of each element separately.
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Operating leases
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The
difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised
as an operating lease asset or liability.
1.11

Cash and Cash Equivalents		

Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with local banks and cash on hand. Cash equivalents are
short-term highly liquid investments that are held with registered banking institutions with maturities of
three months or less and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
1.12 Financial Instruments		
					
Financial assets and liabilities are recognised on the institute’s statement of financial position when
the institute becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial instruments
carried on the statement of financial position include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other accounts
receivable, prepayments and advances, provisions and trade and other accounts payable. Where relevant,
the recognition methods are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.
Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at amortised cost, which due to their short-term nature, closely
approximate their fair value less provision for impairment. A financial instrument is any contract that gives
rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or a residual interest of another entity.
			
The amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or
financial liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the
maturity amount, and minus any reduction (directly or through the use of an allowance account) for
impairment or collectability.
			
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party
by failing to discharge an obligation.
			
Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates.
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Derecognition is the removal of a previously recognised financial asset or financial liability from an entity’s
statement of financial position.
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a
financial liability (or group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate cash flows considering all contractual terms
of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, call and similar options) but shall not consider
future credit losses.The calculation includes all fees paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.
There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments
can be estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the
cash flows or the expected life of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity
shall use the contractual cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of
financial instruments). Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled,
between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.
A financial asset is:
•
cash;
•
a residual interest of another entity; or
•
a contractual right to:
o
o
		

receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that
are potentially favourable to the entity.

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to:
•
•

deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
Exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially
unfavourable to the entity.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

58 Moses Kotane Institute Annual Report

2 17/18

M O SES KOTANE INSTITUTE NP C
N OT ES TO T HE A NNUA L FINA NCIA L S TAT E ME N T S
F OR T HE Y EAR E NDE D 31 MA RCH 20 1 8
Liquidity risk is the risk encountered by an entity in the event of difficulty in meeting obligations associated
with financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset.
Loans payable are financial liabilities, other than short-term payables on normal credit terms.
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate
risk and other price risk.
Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk),
whether those changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer,
or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market.
A financial asset is past due when a counterparty has failed to make a payment when contractually due.
A residual interest is any contract that manifests an interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. A residual interest includes contributions from owners, which may be shown as:
•
equity instruments or similar forms of unitised capital;
•
a formal designation of a transfer of resources (or a class of such transfers) by the parties to
the transaction as forming part of an entity’s net assets, either before the contribution occurs
or at the time of the contribution; or
•
A formal agreement, in relation to the contribution, establishing or increasing an existing
financial interest in the net assets of an entity.
Transaction costs are incremental costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal
of a financial asset or financial liability. An incremental cost is one that would not have been incurred if the
entity had not acquired, issued or disposed of the financial instrument.
Financial instruments at amortised cost are non-derivative financial assets or non-derivative financial
liabilities that have fixed or determinable payments, excluding those instruments that:
•
the entity designates at fair value at initial recognition; or
•
Are held for trading.
Financial instruments at cost are investments in residual interests that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market, and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured.
Initial recognition
The entity recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial position when the
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
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The entity recognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial liability.
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities
The entity measures all financial assets and financial liabilities after initial recognition using the following
categories:
•

Financial instruments at amortised cost.
All financial assets measured at amortised cost, or cost, are subject to an impairment review.

Reclassification
The entity does not reclassify a financial instrument while it is issued or held unless it is:
•
combined instrument that is required to be measured at fair value; or
•
An investment in a residual interest that meets the requirements for reclassification.
Gains and losses
For financial assets and financial liabilities measured at amortised cost or cost, a gain or loss is recognised
in surplus or deficit when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, or through
the amortisation process.
Impairment and collectability of financial assets
The entity assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.
Financial assets measured at amortised cost:
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the
asset is reduced directly or through the use of an allowance account.The amount of the loss is recognised
in surplus or deficit.
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed directly or by adjusting an allowance account. The reversal does not result in
a carrying amount of the financial asset that exceeds what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised at the date the impairment is reversed. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in surplus or deficit.
Financial assets measured at cost:
Derecognition
Financial assets
The entity derecognises financial assets using trade date accounting.
The entity derecognises a financial asset only when:
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, are settled or waived on
derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received is recognised in surplus or deficit.
Financial liabilities
The entity removes a financial liability (or a part of a financial liability) from its statement of financial
position when it is extinguished — i.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled, expires or waived.
An exchange between an existing borrower and lender of debt instruments with substantially different
terms is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability and a new financial liability is
recognised. Similarly, a substantial modification of the terms of an existing financial liability or a part of it
is accounted for as having extinguished the original financial liability and having recognised a new financial
liability.
The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability (or part of a financial liability)
extinguished or transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in surplus or deficit
Presentation
Interest relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised as
revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.
Losses and gains relating to a financial instrument or a component that is a financial liability is recognised
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as revenue or expense in surplus or deficit.
A financial asset and a financial liability are only offset and the net amount presented in the statement of
financial position when the entity currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts
and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
In accounting for a transfer of a financial asset that does not qualify for derecognition, the entity does not
offset the transferred asset and the associated liability.
1.13

Offset

Financial assets and financial liabilities are only offset if there is a legal right to offset and there is an
intention either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
					
1.14 Taxation
					
The Institute is a public benefit organization as described by the section 30 of the Income Tax Act No. 58
of 1962 which was formed and incorporated under section 21 of the Companies Act, 1973 (Act No.71
of 2008). The institute operates on funds derived from government grants. The institute’s receipts and
accruals are therefore exempt from income tax in terms of section 10(1) (cN) of the Income Tax Act No.
58 of 1962.
									
1.15 Related Parties		
					
The entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned
by the South African Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three
spheres of government in South Africa, only entities within the provincial sphere of government are
considered to be related parties.
					
Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the
entity, including those charged with the governance of the entity in accordance with legislation, in instances
where they are required to perform such functions.
					
Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be
expected to influence, or be influenced by, that management in their dealings with the entity.
					
Related parties are disclosed in terms of IAS 24.
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1.16 Prior Year Comparative		
					
When the presentation or classification of items in the annual financial statements is amended, prior period
comparative amounts are also reclassified and restated. The nature and reason for such reclassifications
and restatements are also disclosed.
					
Where material accounting errors, which relate to prior periods, have been identified in the current year,
the correction is made retrospectively as far as is practicable and the prior year comparatives are restated
accordingly. Where there has been a change in accounting policy in the current year, the adjustment is
made retrospectively as far as is practicable and the prior year comparatives are restated accordingly.
1.17 Events after Reporting Date		
					
Events after reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the
reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Two types of events
can be identified:
•
those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events
after the reporting date); and
•
Those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events
after the reporting date).
The entity will adjust the amount recognised in the financial statements to reflect adjusting events after
the reporting date once the event occurred.
The entity will disclose the nature of the event and an estimate of its financial effect or a statement that
such estimate cannot be made in respect of all material non-adjusting events, where non-disclosure could
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the annual financial statements.
1.18 Foreign exchange rate
A foreign currency transaction should be recorded initially at the rate of exchange at the date of the
transaction.
At each subsequent balance sheet date:
•
Foreign currency monetary amounts should be reported using the closing rate
•
Non-monetary items carried at historical cost should be reported using the exchange rate at
the date of transaction
Exchange differences arising when items are settled or when monetary items are translated at a different
from those at which they were translated when initially recognised or in previous financial statements are
reported in the profit or loss in the period.
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2

2018

2017

R'000

R'000

11,763
11,454
23,217

5,338
715
6,053

5,051

1,778

11,473

5,051

5,051

1,778

11,473

5,051

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

Cash at bank
Call deposits
Total Cash and cash Equivalents
The Institute has the following bank accounts:
Current account:
First national Bank, Hillcrest, Account Number 6220 790 1176

Cash book balance at beginning of the year
Cash book balance at end of the year
Bank statement balance at beginning of the year
Bank statement balance at end of the year
Deposits on call (Money Market):
First national Bank, Hillcrest, Account Number 6220 790 5194

Cash book balance at beginning of the year
Cash book balance at end of the year
Bank statement balance at beginning of the year
Bank statement balance at end of the year

694

89

8,771

694

694

89

8,771

694

21

239

2,683

21

21

239

2,683

21

Investment account (7-day interest plus):
First national Bank, Hillcrest, Account Number 7432 271 5374

Cash book balance at beginning of the year
Cash book balance at end of the year
Bank statement balance at beginning of the year
Bank statement balance at end of the year
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FNB STEM Corporate Cheque Acc:
First national Bank, Hillcrest, Account Number 6260 663 7447
Cash book balance at beginning of the year
Cash book balance at end of the year

168
172

0
168

Bank statement balance at beginning of the year
Bank statement balance at end of the year

168
172

0
168

FNB TETA Corporate Cheque Acc:
First national Bank, Hillcrest, Account Number 6245 477 8435
Cash book balance at beginning of the year
Cash book balance at end of the year

120
118

0
120

Bank statement balance at beginning of the year
Bank statement balance at end of the year

120
118

0
120

Cash on hand

Total cash and cash equivalents

3

Trade and Other Receivables
Deposits
Prepayments
Trade and other receivables
Other receivables
Accrued Interest earned
Trade and other receivables

23,217

6,054

R`000

R`000

8
39
2,978
44
32
3,101

213
9
5,328
209
13
5,772

R`000

R`000

268

168

The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate their carrying
value.

4

VAT Receivable
VAT Receivable
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5

Property, Plant and Equipment

5

P ro p er t y, P lant and Equ ipme nt

Reconciliation of Carrying Value

2018
Cost

R'000

Office buildings
Vehicles
Furniture & Fittings

2017

Accumulated
Depreciation &
Impairment

Carrying Value

Cost

R'000

R'000

R'000

Accumulated
Depreciation &
Impairment

Carrying Value

R'000

R'000

4,350

(843)

3,507

4,350

(734)

187

(177)

10

187

(162)

3,616
25

1,304

(484)

820

1,313

(360)

953

Office Equipment

104

(67)

37

117

(81)

36

Computer Equipment

697

(502)

195

820

(443)

377

6,642

(2,073)

4,569

6,787

(1,780)

5,007

Revaluation

Prior Year
Errors

Total
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5.1

Reconciliation of Property, Plant and Equipment – 2018

Office buildings

Carrying
Value
Opening
Balance

Additions

R'000

R'000

3,616

Vehicles

25

Furniture & Fittings

R'000

R'000

0

37

0

0

Depreciation

Impairment

R'000

R'000

R'000

Carrying
Value
Closing
Balance

R'000

R'000

(109)

0

0

0

3,507

0

0

0

(10)

0

0

(4)

10

0

(3)

0

(130)

0

0

0

820

36

28

(8)

0

(18)

0

0

(1)

37

377

13

0

0

(183)

0

0

(12)

195

5,007

41

(11)

0

(450)

0

0

(17)

4,569

Computer Equipment

5.2

Transfers

953

Office Equipment

Total

Disposals

Reconciliation of Property, Plant and Equipment – 2017

Office buildings

Carrying
Value
Opening
Balance

Additions

R'000

R'000

3,725

Vehicles
Furniture & Fittings
Office Equipment

Transfers

R'000

0

R'000

0

0

Depreciation

Impairment

R'000

R'000

Carrying
Value
Closing
Balance

Prior Year
Errors

Revaluation
R'000

R'000

R'000

(109)

0

0

0

3,616

37

0

0

0

(12)

0

0

0

25

789

371

(78)

0

(129)

0

0

0

953

47

6

(0)

0

(17)

0

0

0

36

421

128

(2)

0

(170)

0

0

0

377

5,019

505

(80)

0

(437)

0

0

0

5,007

Computer Equipment
Total

Disposals

38

66 Moses Kotane Institute Annual Report

2 17/18

M O SES KOTANE INSTITUTE NP C

MOSES KOTANE INSTITUTE NPC
N OT ES TO T HE A NNUA L FINA NCIA L S TAT E ME N T S
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
OR TENDED
HE Y31
EAR
E NDE
FOR THEFYEAR
MARCH
2018D 31 MA RCH 20 1 8

6

6Intangible
I n t an gible
Assets As se ts
Reconciliation of Carrying Value

2018

2017

Cost

Accumulated
Amortization &
Impairment

Carrying Value

Cost

Accumulated
Amortization &
Impairment

Carrying Value

R'000

R'000

R'000

R'000

R'000

R'000

413

(268)

146

419

(130)

289

413

(268)

146

419

(130)

289

Computer Software
Total KOTANE INSTITUTE NPC
MOSES
NOTES
THE ANNUAL
FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
MOSES TO
KOTANE
INSTITUTE
NPC
FOR
THE
YEAR
ENDED
31
MARCH
2018
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2018
6.1 Reconciliation of Intangible Assets – 2018
6.1

Reconciliation of Intangible Assets – 2018
Carrying
Value
Carrying
Opening
Value
Balance
Opening
R'000
Balance

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

Amortization

Impairment

Revaluation

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

Amortization

Impairment

Revaluation

R'000

R'000

R'000

R'000

R'000

0
R'000

R'000 0

R'000 0

R'000 (143)

R'000

Computer Software

R'000 289

Computer Software

289

0

0

0

(143)

0

Total

289

0

0

0

(143)

0

Total

289

0

0

0

(143)

0

6.2

Reconciliation of Intangible Assets – 2017

6.2

Reconciliation of Intangible Assets – 2017
Carrying
Value
Carrying
Opening
Value
Balance
Opening
R'000
Balance

39

R'000

0

R'000

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

Amortization

Impairment

Revaluation

Additions

Disposals

Transfers

Amortization

Impairment

Revaluation

R'000

R'000

R'000

R'000

R'000

0

0

146
R'000

0

0

146

0

0

146

0

0

146

R'000

Carrying
Value
Carrying
Closing
Value
Balance
Closing
R'000
Balance

Prior Year
Errors
Prior Year
Errors
R'000

R'000

Computer Software

R'000 340

R'000 75

R'000 0

R'000 0

R'000 (126)

0

289
R'000

Computer Software

340

75

0

0

(126)

0

0

0

289

Total

340

75

0

0

(126)

0

0

0

289

Total

340

75

0

0

(126)

0

0

0

289

R'000

0

Carrying
Value
Carrying
Closing
Value
Balance
Closing
R'000
Balance

Prior Year
Errors
Prior Year
Errors
R'000

R'000

0

R'000
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Trade and Other Payables

7

Trade creditors
Other payables
Leave pay
Total Trade and Other Payables

2018

2017

639
87
237
963

4,107
701
218
5.026

Current Provisions

8

8.1

Reconciliation of Movement in Current Provisions – 2018

Bonus
provisions

Audit fee
provisions

Total

R'000

R'000

R'000

0

438

438

0

(403)

(403)

225

451

676

486

711

Opening balance

MOSES KOTANE
INSTITUTE
Amounts
utilisedNPC
for the year
NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year
FOR THE YEAR Amount
ENDEDraised
31 MARCH
2018
Closing balance

8.2

225

Reconciliation of Movement in Current Provisions – 2017

37
Audit fee
provisions

Total

R'000

R'000

Opening balance

407

407

(398)

(398)

Amount raised for the year

429

429

Closing balance

438

438

Amounts utilised for the year

9

Deferred Income

R`000

Arising from government grant
less: Current portion of transferred
Non-current unspent conditional grants and receipts

R000
13
(13)
0

145
(132)
13

The deferred income arises as a result of assets and funds received from government and funders to the Institute. The deferred revenue is released to the statement of
comprehensive income as an amortisation of liability.
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2018
R'000

10

Government Grants and Subsidies
Revenue
Other government grants and subsidies
EDTEA
External funding
Office of the Premier
LG SETA
TETA
Total Government Grants and Subsidies

11

49.224

598
732
516
55,264

6,850
2,160
1,655
59,889

0
0

90
90

Other Income
Other income
Deferred income realized income
Sundry income
Rentals
Staff recoveries
Total Other Income

13

53,418

Public Contributions and Donations
Public contributions and donations
Total Public Contributions and Donations

12

2017
R'000

132
0
0
21
153

25
1
339
15
380

6,578

8,028

639

901

163
225
553
0
8,158

437
159
539
146
10,210

Employee Related Costs
Employee related costs - Salaries and Wages
Employee related costs - contribution for UIF, Pensions and Medical
Aid
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other
allowances
Training
Guaranteed bonuses
Other employee related costs
Total Employee Related Costs

40
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2018
R'000

2017
R'000

Remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer
Annual Remuneration
Performance and other bonuses
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other
allowances
Contribution for UIF, Pensions and Medical Aid
Other related employee costs
Government assistance services

0
0

1,159
86

0
0
342
1,270
1,612

206
134
0
0
1,585

977
83

934
82

104
87
1,251

114
84
1,214

Remuneration of the Chief Finance Officer
Annual Remuneration
Performance and other bonuses
Travel, motor car, accommodation, subsistence and other
allowances
Contribution for UIF, Pensions and Medical Aid

14

Directors' Emoluments
Executive Directors
Included in employee related costs
Non-executive Directors
Directors emoluments
External independent Directors

Directors' other expenses
Directors Emoluments and Other Expenses

2018

2017

R`000

R`00
0

2,863

2,798

1,645
1
1,646
97
1,743

2,057
2
2,059
267
2,326

450
143
593

438
126
564

Refer to Appendix A for a breakdown of Directors’ emoluments

15

Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Total Depreciation and Amortization
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16

455
455

429
429

49
17
57
151
654
36
124
149
0
56
925
122
2,340

0
17
132
148
526
471
81
205
831
28
1,188
0
3,627

6
397
4,244
193
52
122
61
11
42
98
5,226

52
614
4,399
275
39
346
667
81
52
227
6,752

Administration Expenses
Bad debts
Bank charges
Electricity
Insurance
Rental of office equipment
Other rentals
Printing and stationery
Facilities
Security services
License renewals
Business Development
Loss on foreign exchange transaction
Total Administration Expenses

18

2017
R'000

Auditors' Remuneration
External auditors
Total Auditors' Remuneration

17

2018
R'000

Operating Expenses
Cleaning
Communications
Consulting and professional services
Internal auditors
Meals and refreshments
Travel and subsistence
Office restructuring and security upgrade
Loss on disposal of assets
Motor vehicle expenses
General expenses and consumables
Total Operating Expenses
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2018
R'000

19
19.1

19.1.1

Skill Development & STEM expenses
Programme 2: Strategic Partnerships in SET

Sector Skills Development
Learner stipend allowance
Learner materials
Learner tuition expense
Learner meals and refreshments
Training costs
Travel and subsistence
Total Sector Skills Development

631
50
1,489
26
0
0
2,196

1,500
852
12,054

Total Programme 2: Strategic Partnerships in SET

2,196

12,054

42
1,511
0
1,824
808
4,185

2,811
0
175
2,979
996
6,961

7,497
1,025
4,052
661
13,235

3,811
1,302
6,286
0
11,399

19.2

Programme 3: STEM Education and Academic Development

19.2.1

STEM Education & Professional Improvement
Learner materials
Learner tuition
Learner transport
Learner meals and accommodation expense
Teachers stipend
Total STEM Education & Professional Improvement

19.2.2

2017
R'000

STEM Graduate Development
Learner tuition
Learner materials
Learner living allowance
STEM resourcing
Total STEM Graduate Development
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2018
R'000
19.2.3

20

Sector Research and Development
Research and development
Total Sector Research and Development

2017
R'000

245
245

0
0

Total Programme 3: STEM Education and Academic Development

17,665

18,359

Total Programme expenses

19,861

30,414

Net Finance Income

2018

2017

R`000

R`000

968
968

454
454

Revenue

Bank and deposit Interest
Total

21

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Surplus/(deficit) for the year from:
Adjustment for: (Gain) / loss on sale of tangible Assets
Contribution to provisions - current
Depreciation and amortization
Deferred income
Operating surplus before working capital changes:
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other receivables
(Increase)/decrease in VAT receivable
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income
Increase/(decrease) in operating leases
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payables
Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

18,009
11
273
593
(13)
18,873
2,670
(100)
(119)
(65)
(4,055)
17,204

6,491
81
31
564
(25)
7,142
(5,507)
658
119
26
2,091
4,529
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22

Retirement Benefit Information
Defined contribution plan
The institute contributes to the Momentum Pension Fund for all full-time staff eligible and whose
membership is also compulsory. The fund is a defined contribution plan. The Institute contributes 7.5% of
the pensionable remuneration. The employees also contribute 7.5% of their pensionable remuneration. The
pension fund obligations are paid when due and are terminated when the employee's employment with the
Institute is terminated.

23

Risk Management
Maximum credit risk exposure

The institute’s financial instruments consist primarily of deposits with banks, trade accounts receivable and
payable. To manage the credit risk that the institute is exposed to as a result of holding these classes of
financial assets the following steps are generally taken:
• The entity only deposits cash with major banks with high quality credit standing
• The entity limits exposure to any one counter-party.
Financial instruments are carried at amortised cost.
In the normal course of operations, the Institute is exposed to credit risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk and
foreign currency risk.
23.1

Financial Assets carried at Amortized Cost

The financial assets carried at amortized cost expose the entity to credit risk. The value of the maximum
exposure to credit risk are as follows for each of classes of financial assets at amortized cost:
2018
R'000

Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables
23.2

2017
R'000

23,217
3,101

6,054
5,772

Financial liabilities at Amortized Cost

The financial liabilities carried at amortized cost expose the entity to credit risk. The value of the maximum
exposure to credit risk are as follows for each of classes of financial liability at amortized cost:
R`000

Trade and other payables

23.3

963

R`000
5,026

Foreign currency risk management

Although the entity`s funds that are placed with financial institutions may be subject to currency risk does
not affect cash flows of the entity as majority of our liabilities are Rand denominated.
There is no foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities as at the reporting date.
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The entity has entered into a monetary foreign currency contract in 2018 for settlement of a creditor and
the gains/ losses are recorded in the in the statement of comparative income.
23.4

Liquidity risk

The entity’s exposure to liquidity risk is very minimal as it is funded by the Department of Economic Development,
Tourism and Environmental Affairs (EDTEA). The annual budgets are approved at the beginning of each fiscal year
and drawdowns are requested at the beginning of each quarter. Cash flows are monitored monthly against
budgets and adjustments are made where necessary. Risk management assessments are conducted bi-annually to
assist with identifying any possible cash flows, liquidity or other risks.

R`000
2018
Not later than one
month

Trade and other payables

726

-

2017
Not later than one
month

Trade and other payables

23.5

Later than one
month and not
later than three
months

4,808

Later than one
month and not
later than three
months

-

Later than three
months and not
later than one year

Later than one
year and not
later than five
years

237

Later than three
months and not
later than one year

Later than one
year and not
later than five
years

218

Interest rate risk

Although the entity`s funds are subject to interest rate risk, these funds are placed with reputable financial
institutions. The entity does not hedge any of its funds but monitors the fluctuations in interest rates and obtains
advice from bank officials on a regular basis. Although the Rand has fluctuated in the recent months, the risks
arising out of the decline in the Rand have not been passed onto entity.
23.6

Credit risk management

The entity does not have huge debtors book, as a result, its exposure to credit risk is minimal. The items indicated under
trade and other receivables refer to external funding, rental income. The cash and cash equivalent are deposits which are
placed with highly reputable financial institutions. The deposits comprise of grants received from the Department of
Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs (EDTEA) and these grants are deposited as drawdowns. The
entity limits its exposure by dealing with well-established financial institutions.
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24

Related Party Transactions
The following related party transaction was incurred during the period under review:
- Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs
Transactions with related parties are conducted on an arm's length basis and on the same payment terms as those
transacted with third parties. None of the balances are secured. The institute therefore has a related party relationship
with its sole shareholder. Also, in addition, the Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs
has seconded Mr Ranveer Persad as the Acting Chief Executive Officer.
The transactions with Directors are included in note 13 and 14.

24.1

Transactions with related parties

The following transactions were carried out by the
Institute with related parties:
Grant funding received
Government assistance

25

2018
R`000

2017
R`000

52,148
1,270
53,418

49,224
0
49,224

Operating Lease
Commitments
Lessee

At the reporting date the entity had the following outstanding commitments under non-cancellable operating leases,
which fall due as follows:
25.1

Office rentals - Office Equipment

R`000
2018
Future minimum
operating lease
payments

25.1.1

Office equipment
Amounts payable under
operating leases
Within one year
Within two to five years
Total future minimum lease
payments
Less: Amount due for settlement
within 12 months (current
portion)
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Present value of
future minimum
operating lease
payments

Future finance
charges

616
21

0
0

616
21

637

0

637

(616)

0

(616)

21

0

21
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2017
Future minimum
operating lease
payments
25.2.2

26

Office equipment
Amounts payable under
operating leases
Within one year
Within two to five years
Total future minimum lease
payments
Less: Amount due for settlement
within 12 months (current
portion)

Present value of
future minimum
operating lease
payments

Future finance
charges

619
743

0
0

619
743

1,353

0

1,353

619

0

619

743

0

743

Contingent Liabilities
Legal proceedings

The entity had contingent liabilities of disputed claims (in litigation) amounting to R18,618,777.42 for the year
under review. Litigations are civil and contractual in nature.
Of the above, the entity has counter claims, (in litigation) amounting to R4,460,203 and claims that are not yet
in litigation to the value of R7,932,218.40 for the year under review.
Student contracts

The entity had contingent liabilities of STEM graduate student fees amounting to R8,818,225 for the year under
review.

27

Events After the Reporting Date
The entity had entered into bursary contracts for student funding and payments amounting to
R8,818,225 was payed in April 2018.

28.

Correction of an error
The nature of error:
Accruals

While preparing the annual financial statements of the company for the period ended 31 March 2018,
management noticed that there was an incorrect accounting for an invoice of R990,000 as the services had
not yet been delivered and there was no obligation present in preceding years.
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The comparative amount(s) relating to the Statement of Financial Position have been restated as follows:
R`000
(Restated)

31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Decrease in accruals
Net effect on Statement of Financial Position

990
990

990
990

The comparative amount(s) relating to the Statement of changes in net equity have been restated as follows:
R`000
31 March 2017 1 April 2016
(Restated)
Decrease in accruals
Net effect on Statement of changes in equity

990
990

990
990

Operating lease liability (straight lining)

While preparing the annual financial statements of the company for the period ended 31 March 2018,
management noticed that there was an incorrect accounting for straight-lining of operating lease and the
effect on the financial statements was as follows:
The comparative amount(s) relating to the Statement of Financial Position have been restated as follows:
R`000
(Restated)

31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Increase in operating lease liabilities
Net effect on Statement of Financial Position

26
26

45
45

The comparative amount(s) relating to the Statement of changes in net equity have been restated as follows:
R`000
31 March 2017 1 April 2016
(Restated)
Increase in operating lease liabilities
Net effect on Statement of changes in equity

26
26

45
45

The comparative amount(s) relating to the Statement of Comprehensive income have been restated as
31 March 2017
follows: R`000
(Restated)
Increase in rentals
Net effect on Statement of Comprehensive income

29.

26
26

Income tax
The institute operates on funds derived from government grants. The institute's receipts and accruals are
therefore exempt from income tax in terms of section 10(1) (cN) of the Income Tax Act No. 58 of 1962.
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Details of Director’s emoluments
The supplementary information is unaudited
2018
R'000
Salaries
Executive Directors
Mr S B Mpungose (CEO)
Mr R Persad (ACEO)
Ms T P Ellenson (CFO)
Non-Executive Directors
Prof M S Maharaj
Dr I Z Machi
Dr S G Ngcobo (Chairman)
Dr E V Nzama
Ms N P Myeni
Dr B D Mkhwanazi*
Mrs S B Khomo
Mr B H Gutshwa

Bonuses

2017
R'000
Other

Total

977
0
0
977

83
0
0
83

1,803
342
1,270
191

2,863
342
1,270
1,251

2,798
1,584
0
1,214

1,646
265
305
401
125
324
0
244
1

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

1,646
265
305
401
125
324
0
244
1

2,059
279
417
463
219
395
40
244
2

Details of Directors' service contracts:

No Directors have service contracts with notice periods in excess of one year and with provisions for pre-determined compensation on termination of the contracts exceeding one
year's salary and benefits in kind.
(*) The late Dr. B D Mkhwanazi deceased during the financial year and resigned as a Director on the 04 August 2016
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